
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 26, 2016 

Closed Session Meeting – 6:00 PM 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

 

MISSION STATEMENT  

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 

 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

 Evans Phelps, Mayor 

Reinette Senum, Council Member   Duane Strawser, Vice Mayor 

David Parker, Council Member   Valerie Moberg, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 

each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 

local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 

advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  

Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 

distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 

City, CA during normal business hours. 

 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 

AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 

questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 

to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 

opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. IF 

YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues 

you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence 

delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.   

 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 6:00 PM 

 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, a closed session is requested with 

negotiators City Manager Mark Prestwich, Assistant City Manager Catrina Olson, City 

Engineer Bryan McAlister, Assistant Consulting City Engineer Bill Falconi, and 

Consulting City Attorney Hal DeGraw to discuss price and terms of payment regarding 

possible purchase of real estate located in Pioneer Park at 425 Nimrod Street with owner, 

Susan Schreiber. 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 

 

Roll Call:  Moberg, Parker, Senum, Vice Mayor Strawser, & Mayor Phelps 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

PROCLAMATION:   

 
 

1



 

PRESENTATION:  Overview of Nevada County Homeless Services – Michael Heggarty, 

Director of Health and Human Services, County of Nevada 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 

the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 

jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  

Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 

certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 

action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 

2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 

Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 

for separate discussion and action. 

 

A. Subject:  Interim Staffing at Nevada City Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants 

Recommendation:  Pass a Motion approving Amendment No. 1 to City agreement 

with Fishers Wastewater Services in amount not to exceed $8,000 to provide interim 

management staffing for the City’s water and wastewater plants.  

 

B. Subject:  Award of Contract for Grove Street Sewer Improvements in Nevada City 

Recommendation:  Pass a Motion awarding a contract to Hansen Bros. Enterprises 

in the amount of $74,495 plus $10,000 contingencies for Grove Street Sewer 

Improvements and authorize the Mayor to sign. 

 

C. Subject:  Fire Activity Report – September 2016 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 

D. Subject:  Notice of Completion for 2016 Measure “S” Paving Projects 

Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX approving a Notice of Completion for 

the construction of 2016 Measure S paving and reconstruction and authorize Mayor to 

sign. 

 

E. Subject:  Regional Public Safety Training Center Maintenance Agreement with 

Sierra Joint Community College District, City of Grass Valley and Nevada County 

Consolidated Fire District 

Recommendation:  Pass a Motion authorizing the City Manager or designee to enter 

into an agreement with the Sierra Joint Community College District, City of Grass 

Valley and Nevada County Consolidated Fire District for repair of the fire pump at 

the Regional Public Safety Training Center. 

2



 

4. APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 

A. City Council Meeting – October 12, 2016 

 

5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Nevada City Historic Building Plaques Program 

Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2016-XX 1) Finding a historic building plaques 

program exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 2) establishing the Nevada City 

Historic Building Plaques Program and authorizing the Planning Commission to 

approve new historic plaque proposals within the city limits pursuant to program 

requirements. 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

Certification of Posting of Agenda 

I, Mark Prestwich, City Manager for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the October 26, 

2016 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted October 20, 2016 at the office of the City of 

Nevada City (City Hall). The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 

Signed October 20, 2016 at Nevada City, California 

 

 

_________________________________, Mark Prestwich, City Manager 

 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

City Council 

Long Range Calendar 

 

 

November 9, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

November 30, 2016 Regular Council Meeting (Note Changed Date) 

3

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


December 14, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

December 28, 2016 Meeting Canceled 

 

 

NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 

 

NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 

remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 

while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

4



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

October 26, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:   Interim Staffing at Nevada City Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Pass a Motion approving Amendment No. 1 to City agreement 
with Fishers Wastewater Services in amount not to exceed $11,000 to provide interim 
management staffing for the City’s water and wastewater plants. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: Due to an unanticipated staffing vacancy at the City’s 
water and wastewater treatment plants that occurred September 28, 2016, the City 
required the immediate services of qualified Grade 3 operators to assist with 
management of these critical facilities and to comply with State regulations. On 
September 29, 2016, the City Manager entered into an agreement with Fishers 
Wastewater Services in an amount not to exceed $11,000 to provide temporary staffing 
assistance. The City Council ratified this agreement at their October 12 meeting. The 
purpose of Amendment No. 1 is to extend interim staffing services through November 9, 
2016.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: The City has operational, maintenance and 
reporting responsibilities to the State Water Resources Control Board and Department 
of Public Health. The addition of temporary staffing will facilitate the City’s ability to meet 
its responsibilities. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Fishers Wastewater Services bills at $80 per hour.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
 Amendment No. 1 

5



6



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    
        City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City, CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

October 26, 2016 
 

 
TITLE:  Award of Contract for Grove Street Sewer Improvements in Nevada 
City  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Pass a Motion awarding a contract to Hansen Bros. 
Enterprises in the amount of $74,495 plus $10,000 contingencies for Grove 
Street Sewer Improvements and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 
CONTACT:  Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The City Engineer and Public Works staff have 
identified sewer improvements that are necessary for continued service to 
residents on Grove Street.   The proposed sewer line will provide a much needed 
replacement of century old sewer line that is difficult to access and maintain 
where it is presently located in narrow areas between homes. 
 
City staff solicited bids for Grove Street Sewer Improvements from three local 
contractors in September, 2016.  Two bids were received, as follows: 
 

 Hansen Bros. Enterprises, Grass Valley CA $ 74,495.00 

 C&D  Contractors Inc., Nevada City CA  $ 76,859.00 

 
Hansen Bros. Enterprises was selected as the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder. 
 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The project will be funded as authorized in the 
fiscal year 2016/2017 sewer fund appropriations for sewer collection.    
 
ATTACHMENT: 

 Contract for Grove Street Sewer Line Improvements 

7



GROVE ST. 

SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 

City of Nevada City, 95959 
Nevada County, California 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________                         ______________________________ 

Bryan K. McAlister       William J. Falconi 
PE C58570        PE 25842 
PLS 9199         PLS 4911 
 
 
 

8



NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR'S 

Grove Street Sewer Improvements 
 

Sealed proposals for Grove St. Sewer Line will be received by the City at City Hall, 317 Broad Street, Nevada City, 
California, 95959, until 3:00 PM on October 6, 2016, at which time, or as soon thereafter as practicable, all such 
proposals will be publicly opened and read at City Hall, 317 Broad Street, Nevada City, California.   

 

Bids shall be enclosed and sealed in an envelope addressed to the City of Nevada City at the above stated address 
and shall be marked "Grove St. Sewer Line."   

 

The work includes the furnishing of all labor, materials, and equipment required for the job in accordance with the 
plans, specifications and other contract documents as set forth by the City Engineer. Such bid documents will be on 
file with the City staff and are available for inspection during office hours. Bid proposals may be obtained at the 
office of said City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada City, California on or after September 29th, 2016. 

 

************************************************************************* 

 

The City reserves the right to reject all bids; or to accept any portion of bid schedule; to reject any bid which is 
incomplete or irregular; to determine which proposal is, in its judgment, the lowest responsible bid of a responsible 
bidder and to waive any informality or minor irregularity of any bid. 

 

 

 

DATED: September 28th, 2016    CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

 

 

 

 

               
    ______________________________ 

       William J. Falconi, P.E. 

       Assistant City Engineer 

9



10



11



12



AGREEMENT 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made this _______________ day of ______________________, between the CITY 
OF NEVADA CITY, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "City," and 
___________________________________________, hereinafter called "Contractor." 
 WHEREAS, City has caused to be prepared certain plans, specifications and other contract documents 
pertaining to the GROVE ST. SEWER LINE IMPROVEMENTS in said City: and 
 WHEREAS, after notice duly given, City has awarded the contract for such work to Contractor; 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between said parties as follows: 
 
 1. Scope of Work.  The contractor agrees to furnish all labor, materials, tools and equipment, required to 
complete the sidewalk improvements in Nevada City, California, in accordance with the plans, specifications and 
other contract representation made in mandatory meetings.  All such work shall be performed in a good and 
workmanlike manner and to the satisfaction of the designer of said project. 
 
 2. Contract Price.  As consideration for all such work, City agrees to pay to Contractor the total sum of 
_____________________________________________ ($________________) Dollars, payable in the manner 
hereinafter set forth. 
 
 3. Contract Documents.  The complete contract between the parties hereto consists of the Notice to 
Contractors, the Information to Bidders, the Bid Proposal, the General Conditions, the Plans and Specifications, and 
all other drawings and printed or written explanatory matter pertaining thereto, as covered in the mandatory pre-bid 
meeting. All of the foregoing documents are intended to cooperate, so that any work or requirement specified in any 
of them is to be carried out or observed the same as if mentioned in all. 
 
 4. Time for Performance.  Within five (5) days after the execution of this Agreement, City shall give 
Contractor written Notice to Proceed, and thereafter Contractor shall commence the work and shall prosecute the 
same with due diligence until completion and acceptance by City; provided, however, that all such work shall be 
completed and ready for use within thirty (30) working days after Contractor receives said Notice to Proceed. 
 
 5. Extension of Time.  If, because of adverse weather conditions, strikes, inability of the Contractor (through 
no fault on his/her part) to obtain necessary materials, or other cause beyond the reasonable control of Contractor, 
Contractor is unable to complete the required work within the allowed time, he shall be entitled to an extension or 
extensions of such time, commensurate with the unavoidable delay thus caused; provided, however that Contractor 
shall apply to City for approval of any such extension prior to the expiration of the time for performance as specified 
in the preceding paragraph. 
 
   
 
6. Contractor's Failure to Complete Work.  If Contractor fails to prosecute the work with such diligence as will 
insure its completion within the time hereinabove specified, or any extension thereof, or fails to complete such work 
within such time, or if Contractor shall otherwise violate this Agreement, City may give written notice to Contractor 
and his sureties of City's intention to terminate this Agreement unless, within five (5) days after services of such 
notice, satisfactory arrangements are made with the City for the completion of such work or the curing of such breach; 
and if such arrangements are not made within such time, City may, at its option, terminate this Agreement by giving 
written notice of such termination to Contractor and his sureties. 
 
 7. Payments to Contractor.  On or before the tenth day of each month during the progress of the work, 
Contractor shall submit to the Designer an itemized statement of all labor and materials incorporated into the 
improvement during the preceding month and the portion of the contract price applicable thereto.   
 

13



 8. Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to hold City, and its officers, agents, and employees harmless from any 
and all liability and claims for damages for death and personal injury, and for property damage, incident to or arising 
out of the operations of Contractor or any subcontractor under this Agreement, and Contractor further agrees to 
defend City, and its officers, agents, and employees in any and all lawsuits which may be brought for such damages 
caused, or alleged to have been caused, by such operations.  In addition, Contractor agrees to furnish to the City 
evidences of insurance coverage.  The approval of such insurance by City shall not constitute a waiver or limitation 
of any rights under this indemnity agreement, regardless of whether such insurance shall be held to be inapplicable 
to any such damage or claims therefore. 
 
 
 Executed in duplicate this                     day of                         ,                . 
 
 
ATTEST: CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
    
 
 
                                         By:          
   (Mayor) 
 
   By:               
   (Contractor) 
 
 
   By:          
    (Authorized Officer) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



Project Specifications  

 

PROJECT LIMITS 

Grove Street. As shown on the plans. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project consists of sewer main improvements and connection to existing sewer services within the project limits.   

Methods of installation shall be selected by the contractor, however it is expected that there will be minimal or no 

disturbance of private home landscaping, fencing and hardscaping.     

 

TRAFFIC CONTOL 

When work is being performed, East Broad Street shall have one lane of traffic available for alternating traffic.   Beckman 

Lane may be closed during work hours.   At all times when work is not being performed, streets and driveways shall be 

safe for through traffic and pedestrians.   Lane closure shall comply with California Department of Transportation, 

"Manual of Traffic Controls for Construction and Maintenance Work Zones" current edition.   Notify Public Works Supt 

or City Engineer no fewer than two days in advance of proposed lane closure or driveway closure.   The contractor shall 

coordinate and verify with City staff that homeowners have been provided sufficient notice of any disruption of service 

including water, sewer or road access. 

 

CONSTRUCTION NOTES 

All improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the plans and details for the project and the latest edition of 

Caltrans Standard Plans and Standard Specifications and the Uniform Plumbing Code. 

 

MATERIAL NOTES 

PVC Gravity Sewer Piping: 

Pipe and Fittings:  PVC SDR‐35 shall conform to ASTM D 3034 for diameters from 4” to 15” with integral‐bell gasket 
joints. Rubber gaskets shall be factory installed and conform to ASTM F 477. Pipe joints shall conform to ASTM D 3212. 

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

SEWER LINE PIPE AND FITTINGS 

Contractor shall provide and install all material necessary for the project including pipe, fittings, wyes, pipe connections, trench 

resurfacing, excavation, bedding and backfill.   Hydrostatic test, mandrel testing and/or television testing shall be provided as 

required by the City Engineer. 

15



Trench backfill shall consist of sand bedding around pipe per Standard Specifications and trench zone backfill from top of sand 

bedding to bottom of roadway pavement section with slurry cement backfill or compacted aggregate base. 

SEWER MANHOLES 

Contractor  shall  provide  and  install  all  material  necessary  for  manhole  installation  in  accordance  with  the  standard 

specifications.    Manholes shall be watertight structures.   The inside base of manholes shall be shaped to provide channels 

conforming to the size and crown of the inlets and outlets.   Pipe penetrations shall be sealed with a watertight seal. 

SEWER CLEANOUTS 

Contractor shall provide and install all material necessary for sewer lateral connections under bid item for sewer pipe and bid 

item for cleanouts.     Cleanouts shall be installed for each building lateral and on the upstream side of any fitting with 45 

degree or greater bend.   Cleanouts shall be boxed to grade with a cast iron lid. 

 

 

GENERAL NOTES 

 

Refer to City of Nevada City General Notes and Specifications. 

 

16



CITY OF NEVADA CITY

317 BROAD STREET

NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959

(530) 265-2496

SEWER IMPROVEMENT ~ 2016

Grove Street

17

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
127

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
212

AutoCAD SHX Text
206

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
124

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
122

AutoCAD SHX Text
124

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
136

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
211

AutoCAD SHX Text
207

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
A B C D E F

AutoCAD SHX Text
121

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A B C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D E F

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROVE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO  EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL NEW SEWER MAIN 6" SDR35, L=244'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING SEWER LATERALS AT  ALL ADJACENT LOTS AND INSTALL CLEANOUT (TYPICAL-5 LOCATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP AND  ABANDON  EX.	SEWERSEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL NEW SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP AND  ABANDON  EX.	SEWERSEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL NEW SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EX.  SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL NEW SEWER MAIN 6" SDR35, L=179±



18



19



20



21



22



23



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

October 26, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Notice of Completion for Measure S 2016 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX approving a Notice of Completion for 

the construction of 2016 Measure S paving and reconstruction and authorize Mayor to 

sign. 

CONTACT:  William J. Falconi, Consulting Assistant City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  On August 10, 2016 the Council awarded Teichert 
Construction, Sacramento, CA, the contract for the 2016 Measure S Paving of Various 
Streets:  Beckman Lane, Nivens Lane, Argall Way, York Street (portion), Cottage Street 
(portion), and Chief Kelly Drive (portion). Staff is recommending the City Council pass a 
resolution approving a Notice of Completion for the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  All paving work was funded by Measure S tax funds until 2023. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  
 

 Resolution 2016-XX Notice of Completion and Authorize Mayor to Sign 
 Notice of Completion & Exhibit A 

24



 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-XX 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City that the 
Mayor is authorized to sign a “Notice of Completion”, a copy of which is attached hereto 
and labeled “Exhibit A” which completes the construction of Measure S paving and 
reconstruction of various streets:  Beckman Lane, Nivens Lane, Argall Way, York Street 
(portion), Cottage Street (portion), and Chief Kelly Drive (portion) in Nevada City, CA 
95959. 
 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is authorized to file said “Notice of 
Completion” with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular scheduled meeting of the City Council held on 
this 26th day of October, 2016 by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
        
 
       ____________________________ 
       Evans Phelps, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

25



26



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 
         City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

October 26, 2016       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Regional Public Safety Training Center Maintenance Agreement with Sierra Joint 
Community College District, City of Grass Valley and Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass a Motion authorizing the City Manager or designee to enter into an 
agreement with the Sierra Joint Community College District, City of Grass Valley and Nevada County 
Consolidated Fire District for repair of the fire pump at the Regional Public Safety Training Center. 
 
CONTACT:  Sam Goodspeed, Fire Chief 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: In 2004 a bond was passed by the citizens of Nevada County for 
improvements to the Sierra College Nevada County Campus to include a Regional Public Safety 
Training Center (PSTC) located behind Grass Valley Fire Station 2 on Sierra College Drive.  Among 
the facilities and equipment on the PSTC is an underground water storage and distribution system to 
recirculate water, by way of a pump, from two underground 18,000 gallon water storage tanks.  The 
PSTC is the primary location for training for the Nevada City Fire Department and other western 
Nevada County Fire Agencies.  Over a year ago the fire pump located below ground suffered a 
mechanical issue rendering the pump unusable.  Repair of the pumps proved challenging without a 
mechanism to fund the nearly $15,000 estimated repair cost.  The resulting impact on training for the 
Nevada City Fire Department and other western Nevada County Fire Agencies has been significant.   
 
The City of Nevada City Fire Department along with partner fire agencies Grass Valley Fire 
Department and Nevada County Consolidated Fire District have agreed, upon approval, to fund the 
repairs of the fire pump at the PSTC for the continued training of our agencies. Funding will be 
provided through our training budget as this is the single most important facility for our firefighters to 
gain knowledge and experience.  Upon completion of repairs, the Sierra Joint Community College 
District will assume responsibility for all future maintenance and repairs. The proposed agreement 
remains effective through December 31, 2026 and thereafter for additional five-year terms. Any party 
may, at any time and without cause, terminate the Agreement upon 30 days’ written notice to the 
other parties. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The estimated fiscal impact to each agency is as follows: Grass Valley City: 
$7,000, Nevada County Consolidated Fire District: $7,000, City of Nevada City: $1,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

 Facility Maintenance Agreement with Sierra College 
 
 

27

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


Page 1 of 6 
168774.3 

AGREEMENT AMONG THE CITY OF GRASS VALLEY, 

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED FIRE DISTRICT, 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY, AND 

SIERRA JOINT COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

FOR REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OF WATER PUMPS AT 

PUBLIC SAFETY TRAINING CENTER 

 

This Agreement is entered into this _____ day of October, 2016, between and among the 

City of Grass Valley (“Grass Valley”), acting through the Grass Valley Fire Department 

(“GVFD”), the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District (“NCCFD”), the City of Nevada City, 

acting through the Nevada City Fire Department (“NCFD”), and the Sierra Joint Community 

College District (“College”). The GVFD, NCCFD, NCFD, and the College are sometimes 

referred to herein collectively as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. The College owns and operates the Sierra College Nevada County Campus 

(“Campus”), which is located in Grass Valley. The GVFD maintains a fire station on land 

adjacent to the Campus. 

B. The College has constructed on the Campus an area known as the Public Safety 

Training Center (“PSTC”). The Parties share use of the PSTC for public safety instruction and 

training. 

C. Among the facilities and equipment at the PSTC are one (1) pumps with a 

capacity to pump water at 2,000 gallons per minute (the “Pumps”). These Pumps are currently 

unserviceable, and require major repairs to become serviceable again. 

D. The Parties intend this Agreement to settle their respective responsibilities 

regarding current repairs to the Pumps and maintenance of those Pumps moving forward. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions 

contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Repairs and Maintenance 

1.1. For purposes of this Agreement, “serviceable” means reasonably able to 

support the public safety instruction and training the Parties are accustomed to 

conduct at the PSTC, and “unserviceable” means not reasonably able to 

support the public safety instruction and training the Parties are accustomed to 

conduct at the PSTC. 

1.2. For purposes of this Agreement, “Pumps” means all physical facilities, 

apparatus, equipment, attachments, or modules, or any appurtenances thereto, 

required to pump water at sufficient capacity to support the public safety 

instruction and training the Parties are accustomed to conduct at the PSTC. 

1.3. The GVFD, NCCFD, and NCFD shall pay all costs to repair any conditions in 

the Pumps that make the Pumps unserviceable as of the date of this 

Agreement. These costs include but are not limited to the costs to transport the 

Pumps to and from the facility or facilities where such repairs are conducted. 

28



Page 2 of 6 
168774.3 

The repairs covered by this paragraph shall be deemed complete when the 

Pumps are reinstalled at the PSTC and serviceable. The GVFD, NCCFD, and 

NCFD shall determine the distribution among them of costs covered by this 

paragraph through a separate agreement. 

1.4. Beginning when the repairs discussed in Paragraph 1.3 are complete, the 

College shall assume all costs to repair the Pumps or to maintain the Pumps in 

a serviceable condition over the life of this Agreement. 

2. Indemnification 

2.1 The College shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless GVFD, NCCFD, and 

NCFD, their officers, officials, agents, employees, contractors, and volunteers 

from and against any and all claims, damages, demands, liability, costs, losses 

and expenses, including without limitation court costs, reasonable attorney 

fees and interest, arising out of or in connection with repairs or maintenance to 

the Pumps conducted pursuant to Paragraph 1.4 above, except such loss or 

damage which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the 

GVFD, NCCFD, or NCFD their officers, officials, agents, employees, 

contractors, or volunteers. 

2.2 The GVFD, NCCFD, and NCFD shall collectively indemnify, defend, and 

hold harmless the College, its officers, officials, agents, employees, 

contractors, and volunteers from and against any and all claims, damages, 

demands, liability, costs, losses and expenses, including without limitation 

court costs, reasonable attorney fees and interest, arising out of or in 

connection with repairs or maintenance to the Pumps conducted pursuant to 

Paragraph 1.3 above, except such loss or damage which was caused by the 

sole negligence or willful misconduct of the College, its officers, officials, 

agents, employees, contractors, or volunteers. 

3. Disputes: If any dispute arises between or among the Parties concerning this 

Agreement or the execution of one or more of this Agreement’s terms, the Parties 

shall meet and confer in good faith in an attempt to settle that dispute. In the event the 

Parties cannot settle their dispute, any Party may undertake whatever legal actions 

against the others it deems necessary or prudent. 

4. Renewal and Termination 

4.1 This Agreement shall become effective on the date of its execution and shall 

remain effective through December 31, 2026, and thereafter for additional 

five-years terms as agreed to and provided for under the renewal provisions 

set forth in Paragraph 4.2, unless terminated sooner as provided for herein. 

4.2 This Agreement shall renew for five-year terms so long as, no later than 

November 1 of the last year of the current term, at least one Party sends the 

other Parties written notice of renewal. 

4.3 Any Party may, at any time and without cause, terminate this Agreement upon 

30 days’ written notice to the other Parties. 

29



Page 3 of 6 
168774.3 

5. Notice: All notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed to have been given if delivered personally, via email, or via United States 

mail, postage paid, to the following persons: 

Notices to GVFD: Mark Buttron, Fire Chief 

 City of Grass Valley 

 125 East Main Street 

 Grass Valley, CA 95945 

 

Notices to NCCFD: Jim Turner, Fire Chief 

 Nevada County Consolidate Fire District 

 11329 Mc Courtney Road 

 Grass Valley, CA 95943 

 

Notices to NCFD: Sam Goodspeed, Fire Chief 

 City of Nevada City Fire Department 

 317 Broad Street 

 Nevada City, CA 95959 

 

Notices to the College: Chris Yatooma 

 Sierra JCCD 

 5000 Rocklin Road 

 Rocklin, CA 95677 

  

6. General Provisions 

6.1 No Party shall assign any of its rights and duties under this Agreement, in 

whole or in part, without the express written consent of the other Parties. 

6.2 This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

6.3 Except as expressly stated herein, there is no intended third party beneficiary 

of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

6.4 In the performance of this Agreement, no Party shall discriminate against any 

employee, subcontractor, or applicant for employment because of race, color, 

creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, 

age, physical or mental disability, medical condition or any other unlawful 

basis. 

6.5 The captions appearing in this Agreement, and in any paragraph thereof, are 

descriptive only and for convenience in reference to this Agreement. Should 

there be any conflict between such heading, and the section or paragraph 

thereof at the head of which it appears, the section or paragraph thereof, as the 

case may be, and not such heading, shall control and govern in the 

construction of this Agreement. Masculine or feminine pronouns shall be 

substituted for the neuter form and vice versa, and the plural shall be 

substituted for the singular form and vice versa, in any place or places herein 

in which the context requires such substitution(s). 

30



Page 4 of 6 
168774.3 

6.6 The waiver by the College, GVFD, NCCFD, or NCFD of any breach of any 

term, covenant or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a 

waiver of such term, covenant or condition or of any subsequent breach of the 

same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained. No term, 

covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived 

by any Party unless in writing signed by one authorized to bind the Party 

asserted to have consented to the waiver. 

6.7 Each right, power and remedy provided for herein or now or hereafter existing 

at law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise shall be cumulative and shall be in 

addition to every other right, power, or remedy provided for herein or now or 

hereafter existing at law, in equity, by statute, or otherwise. The exercise, the 

commencement of the exercise, or the forbearance of the exercise by any 

Party of any one or more of such rights, powers or remedies shall not preclude 

the simultaneous or later exercise by such Party of any of all of such other 

rights, powers or remedies. If legal action shall be necessary to enforce any 

term, covenant or condition herein contained, the Party prevailing in such 

action, whether reduced to judgment or not, shall be entitled to its reasonable 

court costs, including accountants’ fees, if any, and attorneys’ fees expended in 

such action. The venue for any litigation shall be Nevada County, California 

and the College hereby consents to jurisdiction in Nevada County for 

purposes of resolving any dispute or enforcing any obligation arising under 

this Agreement. 

6.8 If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, then 

such term or provision shall be amended to, and solely to, the extent necessary 

to cure such invalidity or unenforceability, and in its amended form shall be 

enforceable. In such event, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application 

of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to 

which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and 

each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to 

the fullest extent permitted by law. 

6.9 This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of California. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



Page 5 of 6 
168774.3 

6.10 This instrument contains the entire Agreement among the College, GVFD, and 

NCCFD with respect to the transactions contemplated herein. No other prior 

oral or written agreements are binding upon the Parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 

and year first above written. 

 

CITY OF GRASS VALLEY, GRASS VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Mark Buttron, Fire Chief 

 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 

Kristi Bashor, City Clerk Michael G. Colantuono, City Attorney 

 

 

SIERRA JOINT COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Chris Yatooma, Vice President Admin. Services 

 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 

Jennifer Alford-General Service Manager Jennifer Alford-General Service Manager 

 

 

NEVADA COUNTY CONSOLIDATED FIRE DISTRICT 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jim Turner, Fire Chief 

 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 

Nicole Long-Board Secretary Keith Grueneberg-Board President 

 

 

 

32



Page 6 of 6 
168774.3 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY, NEVADA CITY FIRE DEPARTMNET 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Sam Goodspeed, Fire Chief 

 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 

Niel Locke, City Clerk Hal DeGraw, City Attorney 

 

33



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF OCTOBER 12, 2016 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links and 
Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the meeting date and 
Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at 
(530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 

 
 
CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 6:00 PM 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) the City Attorney is requesting a closed session regarding 
significant exposure to litigation in one potential case. 
 
Action:  Staff to proceed as directed. 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Present:  Moberg, Parker, Senum, Vice Mayor Strawser & Mayor Phelps 
  
    
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
PROCLAMATION:  None  
 
PRESENTATION:  None  
 
1.  BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR-PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2.  COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov for additional comments.  
 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

A. Subject:  Temporary Staffing at Nevada City Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants 
Recommendation:  Pass a Motion ratifying agreement with Fishers Wastewater Services in amount not to 
exceed $11,000 to provide temporary staffing for the City’s water and wastewater plants.  
 

Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Senum to approve Consent Item 3A as presented.  
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
B. Subject:  Broad Street “Y” Utility Undergrounding District Agreements with Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E) 

Recommendation: Pass a Motion authorizing the City Manager or designee to sign agreement and related 
implementation documents with PG&E to advance the Broad Street “Y” utility undergrounding district project. 

 

Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Parker to Consent Item 3B as presented.  
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 

4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 
A. City Council Meeting – September 28, 2016 

 
Action:  Motion by Senum, seconded by Moberg to approve September 28, 2016 Minutes as presented.  

34

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
 

B. Special City Council Meeting – September 29, 2016 
 

Action:  Motion by Senum, seconded by Parker to approve the September 29, 2016 Minutes as presented. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

A. Subject: Monthly Update on City Council Six-Month Strategic Objectives 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 

Action:  Information Only. Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov for additional 
comments. 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Participation in Two Additional Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Programs: mPower and 
Ygrene 
Recommendation:  

1. Approve and authorize the mayor to sign on behalf of the City of Nevada City a JPA amendment to join as 

an Associate Member the Sierra Valley Energy Authority for administration of the mPower program 

2. Approve and authorize the mayor to sign on behalf of the City of Nevada City an Administrative Services 

Agreement with the Sierra Valley Energy Authority for the Administration of the AB 811 Property Assessed 

Clean Energy (PACE) Program (mPower)  

3. Adopt Resolution 2016-43 consenting to inclusion of Nevada City within the mPower program to finance 

distributed generation renewable energy sources, energy and water efficiency improvements, and electric 

vehicle charging infrastructure.  

4. Adopt Resolution 2016-44 consenting to Inclusion of Properties within the City’s Incorporated Area in CHF 

Community Facilities District No. 2014-1 (Clean Energy) to Finance Renewable Energy Generation, Energy 

Efficiency, Water Conservation and Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Improvements and approving 

associate membership in CHF (SB 555) 

5. Adopt Resolution 2016-45 consenting to Inclusion of Properties within the City’s Incorporated Area in the 

CHF PACE Program to Finance Renewable Energy Generation, Energy and Water Efficiency 

Improvements and Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure and approving associate membership in CHF 

(AB 811) 

6. Approve and authorize the mayor to sign on behalf of the City of Nevada City an Amended and Restated 

Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement with California Home Finance Authority 

 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Parker to approve Item 8A as presented. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
B. Subject: Establishment of Measure “C” Citizens Oversight Committee  

Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2016-46 establishing the Measure “C” Citizens Oversight Committee and 

its scope of responsibility. 

 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Senum to pass Resolution 2016-46 establishing the Measure “C” Citizens 
Oversight Committee and its scope of responsibility. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 

C. Subject: Informational Update on City Council Strategic Three-Year Goal to Increase Community Awareness 

and Involvement  

Recommendation: Provide direction to the City Manager. 

35

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


3 

[Type here] 
 

 

 

 

 
Action: Information Only. Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov for additional 
comments. 

 
9. CORRESPONDENCE:  
 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
 
11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  
 
City Manager Prestwich announced the fourth Measure “C” Public Information Open House will be held Saturday, October 
15, 2016 from 10:00am – Noon at Fire Station 54. Prestwich reported that staff was looking into noticing a joint special 
City Council and Planning Commission Meeting on the evening of November 16, 2016 to seek community feedback on 
design concepts for the Nevada Street Bridge over Deer Creek. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT – 7:27 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Evans Phelps, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

36

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    

        City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City, CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

October 26, 2016 
 

 
TITLE:  Nevada City Historic Building Plaques Program  

RECOMMENDATION: Pass Resolution 2016-XX 1) Finding a historic building plaques 
program exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 2) establishing the Nevada City Historic 
Building Plaques Program and authorizing the Planning Commission to approve new 
historic plaque proposals within the city limits pursuant to program requirements. 

CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

BACKGROUND: In June 2015, City Council adopted the NC Forward Economic Strategy 
with a goal of accelerating business growth and economic vitality.  Among the goals of the 
strategy was the implementation of a Historic Building Plaques Program. Several 
communities have adopted historical plaques programs in an effort to enhance tourism.  
Nevada City already has a number of plaques in the historic district and is currently 
working on documenting and mapping them. A list of existing plaques is provided in Exhibit 
C. 

The Planning Commission considered the Historic Building Plaques Program at their 
September 15, 2016 meeting. All commissioners supported the program and offered the 
following process modifications: 

 Require that the plaque material be bronze or bronze-like in appearance. 

 Require that the applicant specify font style.  

 Require staff to route applicant proposals to the Nevada County Landmark 
Commission to verify historic claim, and allow the Commission the opportunity to 
determine if the claim meets standards for their own designation. 

Staff has incorporated the above modifications into the proposed application process 
outlined below. 

APPLICATION PROCESS 
A Plaques Program will provide some control as to the look of any newly proposed plaque 
to ensure it is consistent in style with existing plaques, historically accurate, and 
appropriate for the Historic District. Staff has prepared a draft application and submittal 
checklist. Once a general format is approved by the City Council, staff will convert it to a 
digital format to encourage digital submission.  Applications will be presented to the 
Planning Commission who may approve them with the ability to modify the proposed 
content and finished look. All expenses associated with the manufacture and installation of 
an approved plaque will be that of the applicant.  

37



Staff is prepared to dedicate a webpage to historic plaques that includes a photograph of 
the plaque and provides a map that tourists and residents may reference while touring the 
city. Adoption of a plaques program will inform staff of new installations and allow them to 
update the webpage as needed.   

TOURISM 
The goal of the webpage and plaque program will be to encourage tourists and citizens to 
engage in Nevada City’s rich history. It is also staff’s hope that the webpage will be the 
impetus for an agency such as the Chamber of Commerce to create a walking tour that 
may be used in our mutual endeavor to promote tourism.  

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Adoption of a plaques program would be exempt 
from environmental review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA).  Exemption applies to activities covered by the general rule that 
CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on 
the environment.  The adoption of a plaques program does not qualify as a project, defined 
in the CEQA Guidelines as an action which “…has a potential for resulting in either a direct 
physical change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
environment….” Adoption of the proposed program will not result in either a direct or 
indirect change in the environment and merely provides a process by which a person may 

apply for an historic plaque within city limits.  
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  As indicated above, the financial responsibility for the 
manufacture and installation of any new plaques will be that of the applicant.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Exhibit A – Resolution 2016-XX  
Exhibit B – Historic Plaques Application 
Exhibit C – Existing Plaques Exhibit 
Exhibit D – Walking Tour Guide – Jackson, CA 
Exhibit E – Letter from Nevada City Chamber of Commerce 

38



RESOLUTION 2016-XX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AUTHORIZING 
ESTABLISHMENT OF AN HISTORIC BUILDINGS PLAQUE PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, on May 27, 2015, the City Council adopted an economic 
development plan known as the NCFORWARD Economic Strategy which among 
its goals included an implementation of a Historic Building Plaques Program; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to promote economic vitality and to 
encourage tourism by highlighting the City’s historical character; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Nevada City: 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby finds the implementation of a plaques 
program is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which includes activities 
covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the 
potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby authorizes establishment of a Historic 
Building Plaques Program as outlined in the application provided as Exhibit B. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Nevada City on the 26th day of October 2016, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT/ABSTAIN: 

Evans Phelps, Mayor 

Niel Locke, City Clerk 

Exhibit A

39



Nevada City 

Application for Historical Building Plaque 
317 Broad Street, Nevada City Planning Department (530) 265-2496 ext.130 

Email: Amy.Wolfson@NevadaCityCA.gov 

Thank you for your interest in installing an historical plaque on your building. After submission of 

your application, the City Planner will communicate with you about whether your application is 

considered complete. Applications are reviewed by the Planning Commission who meet on the third 

Thursday of each month. A completed application must be submitted at least four weeks in advance 

of the next hearing date to allow staff time to route and receive comments from the Nevada County 

Landmarks Commission. Please email your application form, and all checklist items to 

Amy.Wolfson@NevadaCityCA.gov and place in the subject line "Historical Plaque Application." 

You can also mail this material on a compact disc or a USB flash drive. Send the application fee by 

mail or in person at City Hall. Please note that applications may be returned if the submittal material 

has not been completed to the satisfaction of the City Planner. 

Checklist of Submittal Items: 

1. Completed Application Form (below)

2. Architectural description (on an attached and titled sheet, provide a succinct paragraph that 
includes):

 architectural style

 building materials

 number of stories

 distinguishing architectural characteristics and details, such as cornice detail, doorways

3. Historical information: on an attached and titled sheet, provide a succinct paragraph on the 
history of the building and enclose relevant materials from these sources (i.e. deed book 
information, building permits, Sanborn Map documentation, newspaper articles, other 
publications, etc.)

4. Attach recent dated color digital images of street view(s) of building; also provide scanned 
historical photographs if they exist. Historical photographs may be archived with the Searls 
Historical Library, located at 161 Nevada City Highway, (530)265-5910

5. Rendering of the finished plaque design (if manufacturer provides this, please include their 
rendering).

a. The rendering must indicate plaque material (must be bronze or bronze-like)

b. The rendering must include the font style (must be legible and consistent with 
existing city plaques).

6. Building elevation showing plaque placement 

Please Note: If your application for an historic plaque is approved, all financial responsibility for 

the manufacture and installation of the plaque will be that of the applicant. 

Exhibit B 

40

mailto:Amy.Wolfson@NevadaCityCA.gov
mailto:Amy.Wolfson@NevadaCityCA.gov
mailto:info@historicalexandriafoundation.org


HISTORIC PLAQUE APPLICATION FORM 

Building Address:   _ 

Owner's Name(s):   

Telephone Numbers: (Home)   (Office) _________________________ 

Owner(s) Address:   

Email Contact:   ___ 

Plaque Vendor Contact:______________________________ (Email) _________________ 

Date(s) of Original Construction (and of any additions):____________________________ 

Provide the following information about your building: 

Is this building considered a contributing building to the Nevada City Historic District’s inclusion 

on the National Register of Historic Places?        Y  /  N 

Is this building associated with a notable person or event? If so provide a succinct description of the 

person or event and their relationship with the building. 

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Please sign the following statement: 

The applicant(s) certifies that the information on this application is true and accurate to the best of 

his/her knowledge. 

Signed: 

Print Name: ____________________________________________________ 
 (if not the owner, an owner authorization statement must be submitted) 

Date: 

41



EXISTING CITY PLAQUES 

Plaque Location Plaque Title 

317 Broad Street 

City Hall Dedication Plaque 

Time Capsule Plaque 

Bicentennial 

Lon Cooper 

John Rankin 

401 Broad Street Nevada Theatre 

433 Broad Street United Methodist Church 

108 North Pine Street Masonry in the Gold Country 

201 Church Street 
County Courthouse 

Board of Supervisors 

300 Main Street First Baptist Church 

316 Washington Street St. Canice Catholic Church 

214 Main Street Nevada Hose Company No. 1 

132 Main Street 
South Yuba Canal Office 

Bicentennial 

Main Street (Robinson Plaza) 

Ott Assay Office 

Five Stamp Mill 

Pelton Wheel 

Doris Foley 

Bob Paine Dedication 

Site of Old Wells Fargo Building 

207 Broad Street (parking lot) Ladies of the Night 

207 Broad Street 
The National Exchange Hotel 

The National 

233 Broad Street Flagg Building 

203 South Pine Street Powell House 

325 Spring Street (Miners Foundry) 

Miners Foundry Allans Machine Shop 

Pelton Wheel Factory Site 

New Salmon Mine Stamp Mill 

412 Commercial Street 
Chinese Pioneers 

Ten Stamp Mill 

109 North Pine Street Former Elks Lodge 

120 Sacramento Street Old Brewery 

101 Broad Street Plaza Grocery 

Pine and Broad Traction Company 

236 Broad Street Kidd and Knox Building 

211 North pine Street 
Nevada City Public Library 

Nevada County Library 

220 Church Street First Brick Building 

214 Church Street Searls Law Office 

424 Broad Street Pennsylvania Engine Company No. 2 

120 Bridge Nevada Ice Company 

200 Broad (Calanan Park) 

Shaft Drill Core 

Nevada City Lions Memorial 

Hydraulic 21 Inch Gate Valve 

Exhibit C.1

42



Exhibit C .2

43



Exhibit C.3

44



45



46



47


	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 10.26.16v2.pdf
	3A-1 Interim Water and WWTP Staffing
	3A-2 Fishers Amendment No 1
	3B-1 Award Contract for Grove Street Sewer
	3B-2 Grove St sewer line replacement Contract
	3C-1 Fire Activity Report - September 2016
	3D-1 Notice of Completion - Measure S 2016
	3D-2 Reso - 2016-XX - Authorize Notice of Completion Measure S Paving.2016
	3D-3 Exhibit A - Notice of Completion Measure S 2016
	3E-1 PSTC Staff Report
	3E-2 Facility Use Agreement with Sierra College re Water Pumps  GRS NEV NCC Final
	4A-1 Minutes 10.12.2016.Draft
	8A-1 Council SR - Historic Plaque Program
	8A-2 Exhibit A-Reso 2016-XX - Plaque Program
	8A-3 Exhibit B - NC Historic Plaque Application
	8A-4 Exhibit C - Plaques Collection horizontal format
	8A-5 Exhibit D - Jackson Walking Tour Guide
	8A-6 Exhibit E - Letter from Chamber of Commerce



